
 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

 
Minutes of the Committee of Adjustment/Planning Advisory Committee 

held August 28, 2023 

    

 

  

Present:              
 

  

Barbara Sproule (Chair); Carl Tooley, Member; Gary Wood, 
Member (Electronic Participation); and Jim Ogilvie, Alternate 
Member 

  

  

 Also Present:  

 

  

 Tara Mieske, Clerk/ Planning Manager (Secretary); Sonya 
Bolton, Manager of Community Planning, County of Frontenac 
(Electronic Participation);  Jennie Kapusta, Community Planner, 
County of Frontenac (Electronic Participation); Councillor Roy 
Huetl, Council Liaison; and Kelly Watkins, Treasurer/IT 
Support. 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. and read the opening remarks. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
a) August 28, 2023   

Resolution #: 41-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Carl Tooley 

Garry Wood 

Be It Resolved That the Committee approves the Agenda for the August 28, 2023 
Meeting, as circulated. 

Carried 

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof 

Barb Sproule, Chair, declared a pecuniary interest in Item 6(b) File #A10/23 - 9489C 
Road 509 (Poulin). 

 

4. Delegations 

None. 

 

5. Adoption of Minutes  
a) Minutes of Meeting   

Resolution #: 42-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Garry Wood 

Carl Tooley 

Page 1 of 6



 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

Be It Resolved That the Committee adopts the Minutes of a Meeting  held July 24, 
2023 as circulated. 

Carried 

 

6. Business Arising from the Minutes  
  Motion to Amend the Agenda   

Resolution #: 43-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Garry Wood 

Carl Tooley 

Be It Resolved That the Committee amends the Agenda to move File #A11/23 ahead 
of File  #A10/23. 

Carried 

 

a) Resolution #23-23: File #A07/23 - Part of Lot 6, Concession 12 - 2260 
Grindstone Lake Road, Geographic Township of Miller - Request for 
Permission to Expand Legal Non-Complying Structure (Davidson) 

James Davidson, Applicant, attended the meeting electronically. 
 
Sonya Bolton, Manager of Community Planning, County of Frontenac, noted the 
Committee deferred the application on May 29, 2023 to provide the applicant the 
opportunity to obtain a slope stability study; or relocate the addition outside the required 
setback from the top of a steep slope. The property owner chose to relocate the addition 
outside the 15 metre setback as determined by the Chief Building Official. The septic 
has recently been upgraded due to the addition of a bath house and is located outside 
the 30 metre setback.  
 
Tooley advised he had no further comments 
   
Resolution #: 44-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Carl Tooley 

Garry Wood 

Whereas, at their meeting on May 29, 2023, the Committee passed Resolution #20-23 
deferring Planning Application File #A07/23 – Request for Permission – 
Davidson/Pitman – 2260 Grindstone Lake Road for the enlargement of a legal non-
complying structure until the required Slope Stability Report was provided; 

Therefore Be It Resolved That the applicant has modified the proposed concept and 
a variance for a reduced setback from the top of slope is no longer required; 

And ThatPlanning Application File #A07/23 – Request for Permission – James 
Davidson and Anne Pitman, 2260 Grindstone Lake Road- shall be approved as 
amended subject to the conditions included in the Planning Report; 

And That the Secretary shall forward a copy of the Notice of Decision to the Applicant 
and each person or public body that made a written request to be notified and any other 
person or public body prescribed by September 7, 2023. 

Carried 

 

9. Minor Variance Applications  

Page 2 of 6



 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

a) File #A11/23 -  Part of Lot 19, South West Range, Geographic 
Township of Clarendon (1230D Austris Road) - Minor Variance for 
Reduced Setback from Waste Management Facility (Leptick) 

Spencer Leptick, Applicant, attended the meeting electronically. 
 
Jennie Kapusta, Community Planner, provided an overview of the proposal.  She 
advised the property owner is proposing to construct a new dwelling within the 500 
metre influence area of a waste management facility which is currently temporarily 
closed. The dwelling is also located a minimum of 18.3 metres from the high-water mark 
of Malcolm Lake. The dwelling is proposed to be 93.6 square metres and 1.5 storey 
high. The property is developed with a dry boathouse, grey water system and a storage 
shed.  
 
Kapusta advised the applicant submitted a compatibility study prepared by McIntosh 
Perry to support the dwelling being constructed within the 500 metre influence area of 
the waste site demonstrating no negative impacts with development of the property.  
She advised the study was peer reviewed by Cambium Inc. who agreed with McIntosh 
Perry's findings with the waste site in its current state. However, Kapusta advised the 
peer review noted the site has the potential to be reopened as there is significant 
capacity left and the potential reopening should be addressed 
. 
Kapusta noted the application was not circulated to South Frontenac for comments as 
there is a septic system on site located outside the 30 metre setback.  
 
Kapusta advised the application was circulated to Mississippi Valley Conservation 
Authority (MVCA); however formal comments have not been received. She advised 
MVCA noted there are potential concerns due to a slope on the subject property.  
 
Kapusta recommended the Application be deferred until concerns raised regarding the 
potential reopening of the waste site have been addressed; and  formal comments are 
received from MVCA. 
 
Tooley advised he completed a site inspection on August 17, 2023. He recommended 
deferral until the site is staked to show the proposed location of the dwelling; comments 
are received from MVCA ;and the concerns regarding the waste site are addressed. 
 
Mr. Leptick advised there is no other suitable location for the dwelling as it will be 
located on a rock bench parallel to the shore approximately 65-68 feet from the lake. He 
also advised the neighbouring property was approved to build a dwelling within the 
influence area of the waste site between 2006-2008. He advised the property is zoned 
Waterfront Residential and this should not be the case if he can’t build. He also noted 
the Township reached out in 2012 regarding a potential purchase of the property. He 
wondered if the buffer area between the two properties could be expanded and if further 
studies are required who would pay and when would they be completed.  
 
There were no public comments regarding the application. 
   
Resolution #: 45-23 Moved By: Carl Tooley 

Page 3 of 6



 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

Seconded By: Garry Wood 

Be It Resolved ThatPlanning Application File #A11/23 – Minor Variance – Leptick – 
1230D Austris Road- shall be deferred until the concerns raised through the Peer 
Review by Cambium regarding the impact of the potential re-opening of the Austris 
Waste Management Facility have been addressed; and formal comments have been 
received from Mississippi Valley Conservation Authority regarding potential concerns 
with slope stability. 

Carried 

 

6. Business Arising from the Minutes (con't)  
a) Resolution #38-23:  File #A10/23 – Application for Minor Variance – 

9489C Road 509 - Minor Variance for Reduced Setback from Licenced 
Boundary of Aggregate Pit (Poulin) 

Note: Barb Sproule, Chair, declared a Pecuniary Interest and left the meeting. Carl 
Tooley chaired the meeting in her absence. 
 
Joseph Poulin, Applicant, attended the meeting electronically. 
 
Jennine Kapusta, Community Planner, provided an overview of the application.  She 
advised the property owner constructed a 1200 square feet dwelling with no planning or 
building approvals. She advised the 70 metre setback is measured from the lot line of 
the licensed pit to the lot line of the subject property. She noted as the lot line of the 
subject property and the neighbouring pit abut one another, the setback is zero, with the 
setback of the dwelling at 20 metres from the lot line of the pit. 
  
Kapusta advised the application was considered by the Committee on July 24, 2023 
and deferred pending peer review of the D Series study. She advised the peer review 
concurred with the procedures and guidelines used to estimate values. However; the 
peer review noted mitigation measures can only be the responsibility of the applicant 
and not the owner of the pit and agreed with mitigative measures set-out in the study.  
 
Kapusta advised the application was not provided to Mississippi Valley Conservation 
Authority (MVCA) as there are no natural features and the dwelling is outside the 15 
metre setback from the slope on the property. She advised the application was provided 
to South Frontenac for septic review who advised a septic permit application has been 
submitted but has not been approved at this time. 
 
There was one public comment received in favour of the application and comments 
were received from Darwyn Sproule, adjacent pit owner.  
 
Kapusta advised  a development agreement is recommended to be registered on title to 
protect the health and safety of the residents and to ensure the operation of the pit can 
continue.  
 
Wood advised he attended the site on June 9, 2023. He noted there is a steep slope 
from Road 509 to access a relatively flat and open area. He noted there is a dwelling 
and two outbuilding constructed on the property. He noted the slope is well treed; 
however the slope makes it challenging to access the site. He noted two orders were 

Page 4 of 6



 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

posted on the property regarding compliance and not to use the dwelling. He noted it 
looks like a constructed site with debris.  
 
Mr. Poulin advised he is planning to lower the access by about two feet and construct a 
round-about to make the access better.  
 
Darwyn Sproule, owner of neighbouring pit, advised the use of the pit has been 
downplayed.  He advised  the pit was used this year about two weeks sporadically but 
could be more in future years depending on the need for aggregate. He noted the 
planning application has been a long process and cost significant money to protect his 
interests. Mr. Sproule advised he wants to be permitted to continue his normal 
operations in accordance with his licence. He noted he does not feel it is his 
responsibility to provide any mitigative measures to permit a dwelling within the 
influence area and feels this should be the responsibility of the applicant. He noted he 
would like to ensure this is covered in the development agreement. Mr. Sproule noted 
he wants to ensure he is not responsible for ensuring future compliance of the mitigative 
measures.  
 
Mr. Poulin advised he is committed to constructing the fence on the hill as a noise 
barrier and is also agreeable to doing everything suggested by the engineer. 
 
Sonya Bolton, Manager of Community Planning, noted staff will prepare the 
development agreement using the conditions noted in the study, including specific 
house construction, noise barriers, etc. She advised some conditions will be addressed 
during the building permit stage and future conditions can be enforced as they are 
included in the development agreement. She advised it is not normal practice for the 
Committee to review the development agreement. 
 
Wood advised he has mixed thoughts on the application and questions if the proposal is 
minor. He also noted there is a lack of detail on controlling the development and is 
concerned there may be future problems. Wood advised he would like to ensure the 
decision is what is best for the community. He noted he will abstain from voting on the 
application.  
Mieske noted as per the Procedural Policy abstaining from voting is a vote in the 
negative.  
 
The Committee advised they would like to review the conditions to be added to the 
decision and development agreement..  
 
There were no public comments.   
Resolution #: 46-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Garry Wood 

Jim Ogilvie 

 Be It Resolved That Planning Application File #A10/23 – Minor Variance – Poulin – 
9489C Road 509- shall be deferred until the conditions of the Development Agreement 
are provided to the Committee for consideration. 

Carried 

 

7. Zoning By-law Amendment Application (Recommendation to Council) 

Page 5 of 6



 
Township of North Frontenac Committee of Adjustment Minutes 
August 28, 2023 

None. 

 

8. Consent Applications 

None. 

 

10. Other Business 

None. 

 

11. Adjournment  
a) Adjournment of the Committee Meeting   

Resolution #: 47-23 Moved By: 

Seconded By: 

Carl Tooley 

Garry Wood 

Be It Resolved That the meeting adjourns at 2:50 p.m. until September 25, 2023 at 
1:00 p.m. or at the call of the Chair. 

Carried 

 

Chair 

Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Page 6 of 6


	Minutes

